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Present—Honorable WILLIAM K. PARRISH, Judge of the 3d Judicial Circuit in the State of Illineis,
and sole presiding Judge of the Jackson County Circuit Court, Ep. H. REgs, Clerk, and WiLLiam Cox,

Sheriff.

Be it remembered that heretofore, to wit: On the 8th day of December in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and fifty-seven, there was filed in the Clerk’s Office of the Jackson Circuit Court, an
appeal from the judgment of D. N. Hamilton, Police Magistrate, &c., in a certain cause wherein William R.
Phelps was plaintiff, and the Illinois Central Rail Road Company, was defendant, which judgment was ren-
dered on the 30th day of October, A. D., 1857, in favor of the said plaintiff, and against the said defendant for
the sum of sixty-five dollars debt ($65) and seven dollars and twenty-two cents costs, making togethcr the
sum of seventy-two dollars and twenty-two cents ($72.22); all of which appears from the papers of said appeal,

7ﬂled as aforesaid, which is in the words and figures following, to wit:

[Page 2.] COPY OF PRECIPE.
/ William R. Phelps,
vs. Before D. N. Hamilton, Police Magistrate.
— Illinois Central Railroad Company.

The said William R. Phelps, by L. Kean his attorney, complains of the Illinois Central Railroad Company,
being summoned, &e., of a plea of trespass on the case.

For that, whereas heretofore, to wit: On the first day of June, A. D., 1857, at the county of Jackson and
State of Illinois, the Illinois Central Railroad Company did own a eertain locomotive used in drawing trains
upon their said road, which locomotive was managed so careless and neglectful by the servants of said company,
that said locomotive run over and killed one brown colt mare, being the property of the plaintiff, and greatly
bruised, mangled and killed said colt mare, to the damage of the said plaintiff §95.00, and therefore he brings

O o N

his suit. L. KEAN, Attorney for Plaintiff.
[Page 3.] COPY OF SUMMONS.
STATE OF ILLINOIS, QS The People of the State of Illinois,

Jackson County. : To any Constable of said County, GREETING :

You are hereby commanded to summon the Illinois Central Railroad Company to appear before me at my
office in Carbondale, on the 30th day of October, 1857, at 10 o’clock, A. M., to answer William R. Phelps, in
action on the case for killing a horse, and fora failure to pay him certain damages, not exceeding one

) hundred dollars; and hereof make due returns according to law.
Given under my hand and seal this 21st day of October, 1857.

D. N. HAMILTON, Police Magistrate. @

COPY OF RETURN ON SUMMONS.
Executed the within, by delivering a true copy to William S. Mason, Station Agent of said Company at

Carbondale, on the 22d October, 1857. ELIAS HINDMAN, T. C.
Filed December 8th, 1857, Ep. H. Regs, Clerk.
[Page 4.] COPY OF APPEAL BOND.

Know all men by these presents—That we, the Illinois Central Railroad Company, and Cyrus G. Simons
are held and firmly bound unto W. R. Phelps, in the penal sum of one hundred and fifty dollars lawful money
of the United States, for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, exec-
utors and administrators jointly, severally and firmly by these presents. Sealed with our seals and dated this
17th day of November, 1857.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that, whereas, the above named W. R. Phelps, did, on
the 30th day of October, A. D., 1857, before D. N. Hamilton, Police Magistrate, within and for the town of
Carbondale, county of Jackson and State of Illinois, recover a judgment against the above bounden Illinois
Central Railroad Company, for the sum of $65.00, besides cost of suit, from which judgment the said Com-
pany wishes to take an appeal to the Circuit Court of said County.

[Page 5.]

Now, if the said Illinois Central Railroad Company shall prosecute their said appeal with effect, or in case

\} of failure therein, shall well and truly pay or cause to be paid, whatever judgment may be rendered by the

court upon the trial or dismissal of said appeal, then this obligation to be void and of no effect, otherwise to be
and remain in full force and virtue.
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ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD COMPANY. {smn}

()

——
by C. G. SIMONS, their Attorney in fact. {SEAL}
) ——

Q CYRUS G. SIMONS.

W. 8. MASON.
Taken and approved by me, this
18th day of November, 1857.
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COPY OF TRANSCRIPT.

William R. Phelps,
vs.
Tllinois Central Railroad Company. On this 2Ist October, 1859, precipe filed by L.
Kean, attorney for plaintiff, and summons issued
Judgment, - - - - - $65.00 to E. Hindman, returnable 30th October, 1857, at
Justice’s Cost, - - - - - 1.75 10 o’clock, A. M. Summon served by copy, on
Constable’s ¢ - - - - - 1.72 W. S. Mason, Station Agent, on the 21st of Octo-
WITNESSES. ber, 1857. Now, on this 30th October, 1857, came
Wm. B. Spiller, - - - - - 50 the plaintiff and- proved his charge, but the de-
Josiah Goodwin, - - - - - 50 fendant came not. Judgment is therefore given
Johu Goodwin, - - - - - 50 against the said defendant for the sum of sixty-
William Dixon, - - - - - 50 five dollars, the amount of damage proved by the
1. H. Morrison, ~ - . - ~ 50 plaintiff, and cost of suit.
Bond 50, Transeript 25, Affidavit 25, Certifi-
cate 25, - - - - - 1256

Given under my hand and seal, this 30th QOctober, 1857,

A
D. N. HAMILTON, P. M. {SEAL}»
——
Bond filed and approved, 18th November, 1857.

STATE OF ILLINOIS, Qg
- .
Jackson County,
L. D. N. Hamilton, a police magistrate within and for the town of Carbondale, in the county of Jackson
d State of Illinois, do certify that the above is a true transeript, and that the accompanying papers are all
that have come to my hand in the above entitled cause.
(iiven under my hand and seal, this 19th day of November, A. D., 1857.

D. N. HAMILTON, Police Magistrate. @

COPY OF INDORSEMENT ON THE BACK THEREOF.
William R. Phelps, 1
vs.
Tllinois Central Railroad Company. 5
COST LEFORE J. P.

Appeal.

R Y A N e S, £ S S S $3.00.
M. Biadnge OGRSIBIE. . il il il v et et e s 1.72
W BrRpilles WVIIBES e st et 50
Josiah Goodwin, e e e I T B A N W el e R R P 50
John Goodwin, I T e T TR TR S R S 50
William Dixon, e A M LR 50
R. H. Marrion, S T et s e F i e S et 50

$7.22

And afterwards, to wit: On the 8th day of December, A. D., 1857, summons issued from the Clerk’s office
ot the Jackson county Circuit Court, against the said plaintiff, returnable on the 4th Tuesday in the month of
December, 1857, to said appeal, which summons was in the words and figures, to wit :—

STATE OF ILLINOIS, ] S8 The People of the State of Illinois,

Jackson County. § ™ To the Sheriff of said county, Greeting :—

We command you to summon William R. Phelps, if he shall be found in your county, to be and appear before
the Circuit Court of said county, on the first day of the next Term thereof, to be holden at the Court House
1n the town of Murphysboro, in said county, on the fourth Tuesday in the month of December next, to answer
an appeal taken from the judgment of D. N. Hamilton, a Justice of the Peace, in and for said county, by the
Mlinois Central Railroad Company, which judgment was rendered on the 31st day of October, A. D., 1857.

g o Witness, ED. H. REES, Clerk of our said Circuit Court, and the seal thereof, at Murphyskoro
{ SEar, } this 8th day of Deccmber, A. D., 1857.

EENCES ED. H. REES, Clerk.
And afterwards, to wit: On Tuesday, the 30th day of December in, the year of our Lord one thousand
cight hundred and fifty-seven, the foregoing cause came on for trial. Wherein the following orders of court
were made and entered of record in the Clerk’s Office of the said Jackson County Circuit Court, to wit:

William R. Phelps, } Tuesday, December 30th, 1857,

Vs,
Tllinois Central Railroad Company. Appeal.

And now on this day came the plaintiff by his attorney, Logan & Allen, as well as the defendants by their
attorney, Cyrus G. Simons. And this cause being ready for trial, by order of the court came a jury of good
and lawful men, to wit: Davis Cox, C. C. Cully, Wm. E. Tolbot, John Butcher, jr., Daniel Bowers, Sabe Pate.
J. G. Conner, Edward M. Ripley, Alexander M. Burkey, Joseph Whipkey, William L. Brown and Hugh Me-
Millen. Who, being duly elected, tried and swo.n, after hearing the evidence, arguments of counsel and in-
structions of the court, upon their oaths return the following verdict, to wit : We, the jury, find the defendants
guilty, and assess the plaintiff’s damage at seventy-five dollars (875.00). Whereupon, the said defendants, by
their said attorney, Cyrus (+. Simons, entered their motion for a new trial in arrest of said judgment.

And afterwards, to wit: On Wednesday,the 31st, day of December, A. D, 1857, the following order of
court was made and entered of record as aforesaid :
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William R. Phelps, ) Wednesday, December 31st, 1857.
Illinois Central Railroad Company.

Appeal.

And now this day came again the parties hererein by their said attornies; whereupon the said defendants,
by their counsel, proceeded to argue the motion, which they had heretofore entered for a new trial, which
motion is now by the court ovorruled, and it is ordered by the court, that the said plaintiff have judgment, and
do recover of the said defendant the said sum of seventy-five dollars ($75.00), together with his cost and
charges herein to be taxed, &e.

And afterwards, to wit: On the day and year last aforesaid, the said defendant, by their said attorney, (.
. Simons, comes and prays an appeal to the Supreme Court of the State of Illinois, which motion is allowed
upon condition that they enter into bond, in the sum of two hundred and fifty dollars ($260.00) with Cyrus
G. Simons security, within thirty days of the date hereof,

Note.—Bill of exceptions may be signed in vacation.

And afterwards, to wit: On the 1st day of January, A. D., 1858, the said defendant by thewr said attor-
ney, Cyrus G. Simons, filed in the Clerk’s office of said Jackson County Circuit Court, their appeal bond in
manner and form as required by an order of court heretofore made in relation thereto.

Which bond is in the words and figures following, to wit:

Know all men by these presents, that we, the Illinois Central Railroad Company and Cyrus G. Simons are
hield and firmly bound unto William R. Phelps, of Jackson county and State of Illinois, in the penal sum of
two hundred and fifty dollars lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which well and truly to
be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators Jjointly, severally and firmly by these
presents, sealed with our seals, and dated this thirty-first day of December, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and fifty-seven.

The condition of the above foregoing obligation is such, that, whereas, the above named William R.
Phelps did, on the 3d day of December, in the year of our Lord aforesaid, in the Jackson county eircuit court,
#t the December special term of said court, which was commenced and holden on the 22d day of said month,
and on the eighth day of said term recover a judgment against the above bounden Illinois Central Raiiroad
Company, for the sum of seventy-five dollars damage, besides cost of suit; from which judgment, the said Illinois
Central Railroad Company wishes to take an appeal to the Supreme Court of the State of Illinois, tor the pur-
pose of reversing said judgment and proceeding of said circuit court. Now, if the said Illinois Centrsl Rail-
road Company shall well and truly prosecute their said appeal with effect, or in any case of failure therein shail
well end truly pay and satisfy whatever judgment shall be rendered by the court, together with all iaterests,
costs and damages which may be rendered, ordered or awarded by said court ; then this obligation to be void;
otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

1

oy

ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD COMPANY, {smﬁl

by C. G. SIMONS, their Attorney in fact. —
Ay

CYRUS G. STMONS, : ' smar |
sl

COPY OF INDORSEMENT.
Wm. R. Phelps vs. Illinois Central Railroad Company.
. APPEAL BOND.

Filed January 1st, 1858. KED. H. REES, Clerk.

And afterwards, to wit: On the 9th day of January, A. D, 1859, there was filed in the Clerk’s office of the
said Circuit Conrt. a bill of exceptions to the aforesaid judgment, which bill of exceptions, are in the words and
figures, to wit :

William R. Phelps, 2

Vs, Appeal.

Illinois Central Railroad Company. /\
In the Jackson Circuit Court, December Special Term, A. D., 1857.

Be it remembered that on the calling of the above entitled eause for trial a jury was empaneled, and the
plaintiff introduced the following evidence, viz

Robert H. Morrison was called as a witness for the plaintiff, who, after being duly sworn, stated as follows

“I was in the town of Carbondale on the day some horses were killed. I happened to come down on the
train that day, and at the time of the accident was proceeding from the station to my residence, which is about
three hundred yards south of the station. I was walking on down the street, when I saw some horses running
down the line. I only had a momentary sight of them. They were ranning down in the direction of the
cattle-guard, which is south of the station. I only saw them a few seconds, when they got behind a house from
we, which excluded them from my sight. At the time I saw them, they were about one hundred yards from
the cattle-guard. The train of cars were in motion at the time. My hmpression is, that the horses were a little
in advance of the train, but not on the read. I can’t say whether the horses were in view of persons on the
train or not.

There was wood piled up for some distance on the east side of the road. The pile of wood extended
down to the street one hundred forty feet, perhaps into cattle-guard. There was no obstruction to the view
from there to the cattle-guard. T did not sec the horses get on the road. I think persons on the train could
have seen the horses if they had been looking out in the direction they were. The train was not running very
fast—ordinary speed in leaving a station; did not notice that the speed was slackened. There is a street run-
ning across the road about seventy«five feet north of the cattle-guard. The street is laid off in the town limits
—did not ring the bell or whistle from the time they left the station house till they got to the cattle-guard.
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“I had just got off the train. I saw three dead horses. One was lying a little to the leftof the track as
you go south. I don’t recollect of seeing a brown filly killed. Tt was the same train that Josiah Goodwin's
horses were killed. I speak of that time. I can’t say how far it is from the station house to the cattle-guard,
but think perhaps it is one hundred yards. It is very level, and a person may be deceived about the distance.”

CROSS EXAMINED.

«T never was engaged in running an engine. I don’t know anything about the business. The horses
were running on the east side of the track. The wood was piled on the east side of the road—can’t say how
long the rank of wood was—can't give any definite idea, but think probably twenty yards or so. In some
places it was as high as a man’s head, and in other places not so high.

«The wood was piled along on the Company’s ground—a part of the road along there is cut lower than
the surface of the ground. The ground is a little descending from the road in an easterly direction.

When I first saw the horses, I suppose they were a hundred yards from the cattle-guard. They were run-
ning as fast as they could run, I suppose. They were not upon the track at that time, but were east of the
road. They appeared to be on the right of way, perhaps on the edge of the right of way, somewhere in the
neighborhood of a hundred feet of the track. The fences extend out nearly square from the cattle-guard—
not a hundred feet on each side of the track—lacks about a rod on each side of extending a hundred feet from
the track.

The fences turned a square corner, and then run south. The horses, when I saw them, were running
south toward the fence—no impediment to prevent the horses from turning east. The horses were running
down south. [ was a good piece from them at the time I saw them running. I think they were a hundred
yards from the cattle-guard the last T saw of them before they were killed—TI only had a glance at them. It
was my supposition that the arrival of the train started the horses to running, but can’t say certainly. There
was nothing to prevent the horses from tarning around the railroad fence, or turning down the street. There
¥as no crossing put in on the street, but the street was opened on both sides of the road —the street was not
obstructed with wood. It was sometimes used by persons on foot and on horseback, but was not used for

wagoners.”’
RE-EXAMINED BY PLAINTIFEF's COUNSEL.

«T think if the whistle had been sounded, it might have scared the horses off the road, but I can’t tell.
I have seen horses frightened off the road by whistling. I have seen some horses run on the side of the road
and then leave it. It is impossible to tell what a horse will do—a man can’t judge what they will do.”

@Wpiller was then called as a witness by the plaintiff, and after having been duly sworn, deposed as follows:

« T was not in Carbondale at the time of the accident. I went to the place where the horses were killed
two or three hours afterwards.

«T was a repair hind on the road, and was sent for to remove the horses. I would say, when I came to
where the brown filly lay, she was some thirty yards below or south of the cattle-guard, and east of the road,
lying up on a little bank. The mare was badly crippled. The wmuscles of the fore leg and shoulder were all
completely mashed, so that it was entirely useless. I saw some horses’ tracks some ten or twelve feet from
where she lay. They looked like they had come from railroad track. No other horse was by her at the time.
The wound appeared to have been done by ecars. I can’t say where the mare was struck. She might have
been struck above and went up to where she lay. T can’t say whether she was struck at, above or below the
cattle-guard. The brown filly belonged to W. R. Phelps, and was worth 875 or $80. The boss of the repair
hands sent me down to remove the horses. The mare was wholiy ruined and worthless, and we knocked her
in the head and hauled her off over beyond where Robert H. Marrion lives, about three hundred yards from
the road. She was lying down when we came to her —we did not try fo get her up—we thought it was no use
to try. She made one effort to get up, but failed.

There has been lots laid off on both sides of the railroad below the cattle-guard, before the accident occurred.
Lots are laid out fifty or seventy-five yards kelow where the filly lay—think lots are laid out one hundred
yards below the cattle-guard—dont know whether these lots are a part of Carbondale or individual enterprise.”

John Fight was then called as a Witness by the plaintiff, and after being sworn, deposed as follows :

« T was in Carbondale on the day the horses were killed. I was on the side of the road at the time, be-
tween the depot and the cattle-guard. I saw some horses running in towards the road and cars running on down.
The cars got between me and the horses, and I supnose hit them. I was about half way between depot and
cattle-guard. There was a dark colored sorrel mare and colt and a grey horse, that I noticed. The horses
were coming from the east side of the road in the direction of the cattle-guard. The horses were about fifty
yards from the cattle-guard when I first saw them. There was nothing that I know of to obstruct the sight of
the horses from the road. The persons on the train and engine were up higher than I was. There was nothing
that I know of to have prevented the engineer from seeing the horses if he had been looking in that direction.
The last I saw of the horses they were coming on to the road after the train had passed—I saw the sorrel mare
and colt and brown filly.

«The sorrel mare was lying near the cattle-guard, and the colt in the cattle-guard, and the brown filly
about twe rods south of it. The brown filly’s shoulder was mashed all to pieces. Nothing else that I saw
could have done the damage except the cars. Don’t know whose property the brown filly was—she is the same
horse beast spoken of by Spiller. The train left the depot not very fast, but abeutas usual for them to leave—
did not hear the bell ring or whistle sounded. Tt is about two or three hundred yards from the depot to the

cattle-gnard.”



CROSS EXAMINED.

“ When T first saw the horses they were in an open space, in the town of Carbondale—don’t think I was
more than half way from the station to the cattle-onard. T have stated all that T saw i1l I went down o where
the horses lay. I had started down on the line hefore the train came in—T was walking by the side of the tract
on the east when T first started, but crossed over on the west side, and was on the west side of the track when
[ first saw the horses. T don’t think the horses were on the west side of the track. If they had passed over
on the west side of the track T think T would haveseen them. T don’t think they ever got on the west side at
all. T don’t know how far east I could have seen. hut conld see as fir as the fence on the side of the road. I
could see the fence very near the cattle-gnard on both sides of the road, 1 perhaps could have seen the ho 'ses
juwp the fence if they had jumped it. T did not see the horses j amp the fence. They got in the road before
they got to the fenee. The horses were ranning pretty asod speed—as fiast as they could ran. The ranning
of the train frequently makes a noise or rattling which fraquently frichtens horses. The engine puffed a good
deal at starting—all the engines that ever T have seen do so. The horses were forty or fifty yards from the
railroad track—when I first saw them they were running in a sonthern direction, nearly the same direction the
cars were going. The horses werea little nearer tne cattle-gnard when T first saw them than the cars were,
The horses started abont the time the train started, and hegan to mike wool speed just as they passed me. It
was but a little bit after they passed me that they oot on the road. When the horses made the turn to come
on to the road they went out of my sight, T suppose, when they made the turn they were attempting to cross.
They turned their heads south when they started to run—they were going sonth the last I saw of them. T was
standing at the time ten feet or farther from the track— when the horses ot on the road the train was within
twenty or thirty steps of the eattle cuard, perhaps, less or more. I reckon it was not more than twenty-five or
thirty steps from the cattle-guard, or about that distance.”

Elias Hindman was then called as a witness for the plaintiff, who, after being sworn, deposed as follows:

“ T was in Carbondale ou the day the horses were killed—was about the platform or station. T don’t
think they whistled or rung the bell when they started.  They started as usual, and kept getting faster and
fister. They were rununing fuster at the cattle-guard than when they started. I don’t know how far it is from

the station to the cattle guard, but sapppose it is two or three hundred yards.”

Here the plaintiff closed his evidence. The defendants then called Mr. Tlastings as a witness, who, after
being sworn, deposed as follows:

“I am an engineer by trade—have been engaced as an engineer on railroads and running trains four years
last April, and had charge of trains for that time, except three months. I was engineer on the Ilinois Central
Railroad the first of June last. T fintier myself that I understand the business of an engineer, and the man-
agement of trains. I was ranning the train as enzineer when some horses were killed in Carbondale last June.
It was a passenger train. The train was due at Carbondale ten minufes past three o'clock, in the afternoon.
We arrived about ten minutes behind time. [ think we left the station about twenty minutes past three o'clock.
In leaving the station I think I sounded the beil. There was no appearance of road crossing or street between
the station and the cattle-guard at that time.

“After leaving the station I run along up till T got pretty near up to the cattle-guard. T could see the centre ot
the pilot. I saw a horse’s head on the left hand side of the pilot. I was then in two or three feet of the
cattle-guard.  Just at that moment I felta jar. When the cars strike a horse or two, we can generally feel it
when on a light engine, and that was a Tight engive I was then ranning. T was on the right hand side—it was
my duty to be on that side. In goingsouth, as we were then, I was on the west side. The cars occupy about

)

eight and a-half feet width—the train w s made up of the engine, tender, bagoage car, and two passenger cars.
The passenger cars were thirty-four feet long, each baggage car thirty-two feet long, and the engine and tender
thirty-six feet in length. There isa dome in the centre of the boiler. If horses were from four to eight rods
from the road on the east side and aheud, I couid not have seen them for the dome. I wooded at Carbondale,
on leaving the firemaun was throwing in wood. When he got in ali the wood there necessary to put in the
furnace, aud just us he raised or straightened up, he said, horses. I jumped to the left hand side and saw the
horses just s they were struck.  The fireuan was at his post, necessarily engaged 1 the discharge of his duty.

m

T was enzaged at my place.  There is no power on eirth that could have stopped the train before the horses were
struck ;tf;tex' I saw them. 'Thae hovses were strask the moncat [ saw them. If the horses had ot upon the
track and run twenty-five ov thirty yards, I would have seen them. I think I saw then the moment they got
upon the track. Iithe sides of the track is clear, stock are as liable to o upon the track as uot; but if not clear,
eight chances to four they will go upon the track when frightened. When stock are coming out of the brash,
and I think I can pass them before they come upon the road, [ never stop.  When the whistle is sounded when
stock is un the read where there ave no bushes at the sides, they are as likely to leave the road as to keep it:
but if there are obstacles or obstructions, such as dumps and oushes, they generully keep the road. I think at
the place where the horses were killed, there were bushes in the inside of the fence.

CROSS EXAMINATION.

It was impossible to stop after I saw the horses. I might have stopped before running forty yards. I
swore yesterday that I thought I could stop a train in five and a-half rods. T still think I could stop a train in
twenty-seven and a-half’ feet by reversing the engine and putting on the brakes, and in twenty-eight and a-
half {eet by putting on the brakes simply. I think I' could have stopped the train before T got to the cattle-
guard if' T had seen the horses on the road forty yards north of the cattle-guard. There was an old man on the
engine at the time, but he Was not in the service of the Company. T was the engineer in charge of the train
at that time. A train can not always be stopped in running the distance I have mentioned. That denends
upon the road, wnd whether the brukemen are at their posts. I suppose it is the daty of the brakemen to be
always at their posts.
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RE-EXAMINED BY DEFENDANT’s COUNSEL.

Brakemen have to keep up fires and attend to the lights. They have more duties to perform than simply to
wind up the brakes between stations. Itis their duty to keep up fires, look after the lights, and a great many
other things to attend to.

CROSS EXAMINED.

It is not unusual to have fire in the cars in June, nor to light up at three o’clock in the evening. I don't
recollect how many taps I gave the bell on starting, but I rang just before we started.

Then the defendants closed their evidence.

The foregoing is all the testimony offered in the cause, and all the evidence in the case.

The court then instructed the jury at the instance of the plaintiff, as follows :

If the proof shows that plaintiff’s horse was killed in consequence of gross negligence on the part of the
defendants or other servants, the verdict should be guilty.—Gwin.

2. Gross negligence, as known to the law, means less care or caution than a man of ordinary care or pru-
dence would exercise for the protection of his own property.

3. If the jury believe from the evidence that the defendants in this case or their servants acted in such a
manner at the time of the killing of plaintiff's horse (if it was killed by them) as to show a wanton or reckless
disregard of the safety of property, the verdict should be guilty.

The court instructs the jury that the fact of killing the horse may be proven as well by circumstantial
evidence.

The Court also gave the following instructions to the jury, at the instance of the defendants :

The court instructs the jury, that the burden of proof is on the plaintiff, and it devolves upon him to show
by facts and circumstances, and by those acquainted with the management of trains, who can speak under-
standingly on the subject, that it was practicable and easy to have avoided the collision, and that in not doing
s0, those in charge of the train were guilty of wanton, wilful or gross negligence, or carelessness, before he is
entitled in law to recover in this case.

The court is asked to instruct the jury that in this case gross negligence will not be presumed from the
killing of the horses only by the railroad train of defendants, it must be shown by the plaintiff that there has
been wanton or wilful, or gross negligence on the part of the defendants in killing the horses in question, be-
fore the plaintifl’ is entitled to recover.

2d. That the question as to whether the said railroad was fenced or not, is not in issue in this case.

3d. Railroad Companies have an absolute ownership in fee of the lands on which their roads are built,
for their purposes, and if horses graze upon their lands it must be as favor, not as right; and cattle or
horses will not be protected in trespassing upon them, except as against wilful and malicious injuries or gross
negligence. )

That if the jury should believe from the evidence that the engineer did not ring his bell at starting from
Carbondale station, nor while crossing a street, this fact would not entitle the plaintiff to recover unless the
horses were killedin consequence of such neglect—and that fact must appear from the testimony.

The jury retired from the bar and soon returned a verdict—finding the defendant guilty, and assessing
damages at $——

The defendants, by their counsel, moved the court for a new trial and assigned the following grounds:

1st. The verdict is against the evidence.

2. The verdict is against the law.

3. The verdict is against the law and evidence.

But the court overruled the motion for a new trial and rendered judgment for the plaintiff on the verdict
of thejury; to which opinion of the court in overruling the defendants’ motion for a new trial, the defendants,
by their counsel, then and there excepted, and pray that this their bill of exceptions may be signed and
sealed, and made a part of the record, which is done accordingly by

WILLIAM K. PARRISH, Judge Jackson Court.

William R. Phelps, Jackson Circuit Court—>Special December Term, 1859.
vs. Appeal.
[linois Central Railroad Company. } Cost Bill.
COST BY PLAINTIFF.
Ulerk’s Fee.—Filing papers of appeal, 560, - - - - % 50
< & Docketing suit, 10; issuing summons, 35, - - 45
“ £ Filing same, 5; entering Sheriff’s return, 10, < - - 15
% Filing two precipes, 10, - - - - 10
Issuing three subpenas $1.05; filing same, 15, - - - 1 20
Entering appearance of plaintiff’s attorney, 10, - - 10
Calling cause for trial, 20, . - - . - 20
“ Calling and serving jury, 15: entering same, 10, - - 25
Swearing five witnesses, 25, - - - ~ 25
k8 4 Swearing to and filing six affidavits of witnesses, 60, - - 60
& Entering verdict of jury, 20, - - - - 20
Judgment. 25; docketing same, 10; satasft, 15 - - 50
Recording plaintiff’s cost bill, 30, - - . - 30——$4 30
Deputy Davis, Jury fees, - - - - - 3 00
o g Serving summons, 50; mileage, 40; returning, 10, - - 100
“  Subpoena on six witnesses, 1.50, - - - 1 50

< < Mileage on same, 3 40; returning, 30. - - - 3 70—y 6 2%



Witnesses.—R H Marion, six days, $6.00; John Fisher, seven days, $7.00, - 13 00
B. Spiller, seven days, $7.00; Thos. Thornton, seven days, $7.00, 14 00
John Goodwin, seven days, $7.00; Josiah Goodwm, seven days, $7.00, 14 00—-41 09

f Cost before Justice D. N. Hamilton, on transeript, $3 00 - " 4 3 00
. e \ K. Hindman, on transcript, $1 75, - < - = ; 175
Witness before Justice, Ww. L. Spiller, one day, 50; Josiah Goodwin, one day, 50 1 00
( = 5 e John Goodwin. one day, 50; Wm. Dixon, one day, 50, - 100
“ “ * R. H. Marion, one day, 50; Thomas Thornton, one day, 50, 1 00— 775
/ DEFENDANT'S COST BILL.
Clerk’s Cost.—Filing Precipe, 5, - - 3 - “ 5
L & ¢« Issuing 2 subpenas, 70, filing same, 10, - - 80
) & i Filing two papers, in progress of suit, 10, - - - 10
3 & < Entering appearance of defendant’s attorney, 10, - 10
& < Eutering motion for new trial, 20, - - = 20
\ o « Order granting an appeal, 20, . - . 20
\, &% £ Filing bond, 5; do bill ot exceptions, 5, - - - 10
" « = Recording defendants’ cost bill, 30 - - < 30
“ b Copy of same, - - - - - 35
4 - same, with certificate and seal, 35, - - . 35
“ “ Making copy of record, containing 7,240 words, at 10 cents per 100 words, 7 42
k # e Certificate and seal to same, 35, - « -
\ (\‘:‘ Wm. Cox, sheriff—Serving subpoena on one, 25; mileage 40, - - 65
N Returning, 10, s : \ . A . ; 10
b / Deputy Davis.—Serving subpoena, 25; mileage, 60; returning, 10, - - 95— 1 70
= ) Witness.—Henry Histings, six days and sixty-four miles travel, $§9.20, - - 9 20
2 &"\\/ STATE OF ILLINOIS, } SS
; Jackson County, 2
/

1, Edward H. Rees, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Jackson County and State of Illinois, do hereby certify
that. the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the original papers, orders of court, fee bills, &e. in the above
‘entitled cause, as appearson recordin my flioce.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal

/ r~N
i {SEAL } of my office at Murphysboro, this 15th day of November, A. D., 1859.
A, ED. H. REES, Clerk.

e Y

Creors Assigued., =

e ' —p—o-®oPp— . P85

ist. The court erred in adnitting improper evidence against defendant below.

2d. The court erred in excluding proper evidence offered by defendant below.
3d. The court erred in refusing a new trial,

4th, The court erred in ren dering judgment for plaintiff below.

5th.  The court erred in rendering judgment against defendant below.
6th. The court gave improper instructions for plaintiff below.

@th.  The court refused proper instructions for defendant below.

HAYNIE, for Plaintiff in error.



D
v/ /{;27/

(P

s ; //; 0 //H%w ,

C)]C/f//z g eer s

Mﬁ%/‘/% "

/W&




Pleas i the Fackson County Givewit Gowt

OFr TEHE &=
DECEMBER SPECIAL TERM, A. D. 1857.

R §— i — O I —

' . / H, Judee of the 3d Judicial Circuit in the State of Illincis,
Presirr]ltd—;gg %aZZ?é?n;V} &Zi%yt}l\% .];j(tlljslzﬁs(}o’unty Circuit Court, Ep. H. REEgs, Clerk, and Wirniam Cox,

Sheriff. '

Be it remembered that heretofore, to wit: On the 8th day of December in the year of: our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and fifty-seven, there was filed in the Clerk’s Qfﬁee of t.he Jackson Clr.cult LY(.“/oTn't, A
appeal from the judgment of D. N. Hamilton, Police Magistrate, &ec., in a certain cause W?lerem William R.
Phelps was plaintiff, and the Illinois Central Rail Road Company, was d‘efendant, .Whlch Judgment was ren-
dered on the 30th day of October, A. D., 1857, in favor of the said plaintiff, and against the sa}d defendant for
the sum of sixty-five dollars debt ($65) and seven dollars and twenty-two cents costs, making tog.ethcr the
sum of seventy-two dollars and twenty-two cents ($72.22); all of which appears from the papers of said appeal,

COPY OF TRANSCRIPT.

William R. Phelps,
vs.
Illinois Central Railroad Company. On this 2Ist October, 1859, precipe filed by L.
Kean, attorney for plaintiff, and summons issued
Judgment, - - - . - $65.00 to E. Hindman, returnable 30th October, 1857, at
Justice’s Cost, - . - . - 1.75 10 o’clock, A. M. Summoen served by copy, on
Constable’s « - - - - - 1.72 W. S. Mason, Station Agent, on the 21st of Octo-
WITNESSES. ber, 1857. Now, on this 30th October, 1857, came
Wm. B. Spiller, - - - g - 50 the plaintiff and proved his charge, but the de-
Josiah Goodwin, - - - - - 50 fendant came not. Judgment is therefore given
John Goodwin, - - - - - 50 against the said defendant for the sum of sixty-
William Dixon, - - - - - 50 five dollars, the amount of damage proved by the
R. H. Morrison, -~ - - - - 50 plaintiff, and cost of suit.
Bond 80, Transeript 25, Afidavit 25, Certifi-

cate 25, = - - - - 125 ||
Given under my hand and seal, this 30th October, 1857,

oy
D. N. HAMILTON, P. M. {smn}

et

Bond filed and approved, 18th November, 1857.
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William R. Phelps, } Wednesday, December 31st, 1857.

Vvs.

Tllinois Central Railroad Company. Appeal.

And now this day came again the parties hererein by their said attornies ; whereupon the said defendants,
by their counsel, proceeded to argue the motion, which they had heretofore entered for a new trial, which
motion is now by the court ovorruled, and it is ordered by the court, that the said plaintiff have judgment, and
do recover of the said defendant the said sum of seventy-five dollars ($75.00),
charges herein to be taxed, &e.

And afterwards, to wit: On the day and year last aforesaid, the said defendant, by their said attorney, C.
G. Simons, comes and prays an appeal to the wupreme Court of the State of Tllinois, which motion is allowed
upon condition that they enter into bond, in the sum of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) with Cyrus
G. Simons security, within thirty days of the date hereof.

Note.—Bill of exceptions may be signed in vacation.

And afterwards, to wit: On the Ist day of January, A. D., 1858, the said defendant by their said attor-
ney, Cyrus G. Simons, filed in the Clerk’s office of said Jackson County Circuit Court, their appeal bond in
manner and form as required by an order of court heretofore made in relation thereto.

Which bond is in the words and figures following, to wit:

Know all men by these presents, that we, the Illinois Central Railroad Company and Cyrus G. Simons are
held and firmly bound unto William R. Phelps, of Jackson county and State of Illinois, in the penal sum of
two hundred and fifty dollars lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which well and truly to
be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators Jointly, severally and firmly by these
presents, sealed with our seals, and dated this thirty-first day of December, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and fifty-seven.

The condition of the above foregoing obligation is such, that, whereas, the above named William R.
Phelps did, on the 3d day of December, in the year of our Lord aforesaid, in the Jackson county circuit court,
at the December special term of said court, which was commenced and holden on the 224 day of said month,
and on the eighth day of said term recover a judgment against the above bounden Illinois Central Railroad
Company, for the sum of seventy-five dollars damage, besides cost of suit; from which judgment, the said Illinois
Central Railroad Company wishes to take an appeal to the Supreme Court of the State of Illinois, tor the pur-
pose of reversing said judgment and proceeding of said circuit court. Now, if the said Illinois Central Rail-
road Company shall well and truly prosecute their said appeal with effect, or in any case of failure therein shail
well ¢nd truly pay and satisfy whatever judgment shall be rendered by the court, together with all interests,
obligation to be void;

together with his cost and

costs and damages which may be rendered, ordered or awarded by said court ; then this
otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

——
ILLINOTS CENTRAL RATLROAD COMPANY, { skar )L
by C. G. SIMONS, their Attorney in fact. e

.
CYRUS G. SIMONS. { sear, }

COPY OF INDORSEMENT.

Wm. R. Phelps vs. Illinois Central Railroad Company.

APPEAL BOND. :
Filed January Ist, 1858. ED. H. REES, (lerk.

And afterwards; to wit: On the 9th day of January, A. D., 1859, there was filed in the Clerk’s office of the
sald Cireuit Court, a bill of exceptions to the aforesaid judgment, which bill of exceptions, are in the words and
tigures, to wit :

William R. Phelps, l
vs.
Illinois Central Railroad Company. 5
In the Jackson Cireuit Court, December Special Term, A. D., 1857.
Be it remembered that on the calling of the above entitled cause for trial, a jury was
plaintifl introduced the following evidence, viz:
Robert H. Morrison was called as a witness for the plaintiff, who, after being duly sworn, stated as follows :
“I was in the town of Carbondale on the day some horses were killed.

Appeal.

empaneled, and the

I happened to come down on the
train that day, and at the time of the accident was proceeding from the station to my residence, which is about
three hundred yards south of the station. I was walking on down the street, when I saw some horses running
down the line. I only had a momentary sight of them. They were running down in the direction of the
cattle-guard, which is south of the station. T only saw them a few seconds, when they got behind a house from
me, which excluded them from my sight. At the time I saw them, they were about one hundred yards from
the cattle-guard. The train of cars were in motion at the time.
in advance of the train, but not on the read.

train or not.

My impression is, that the horses were a little
I can’t say whether the horses were in view of persons on the
There was wood piled up for some distance on the east side of the road. The pile of wood extended
down to the strect one hundred forty feet, perhaps into cattle-guard. There was no obstruction to the view
from there to the cattle-guard. I did not see the horses get on the road. T think persons on the train could
have seen the horses if they had been looking out in the direction they were.

0

fast—ordinary speed in leaving a station; did not notice that the speed was slackened. There is a street run-

The train was not running very

ning across the road about seventy«five feet north of the cattle-guard. The street is laid off in the town limits
—did not ring the bell or whistle from the time they left the station house till they got to the cattle-guard.
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I had just got off the train. I saw three dead horses. One was lying a little to the left’of the track as
you go south. T don’t recollect of seeing a brown filly killed. It was the same train that Josiah Goodwin's
horses were killed. T speak of that time. I can’t say how far it is from the station house to the cattle-guard,
but think perhaps it is one hundred yards. It is very level, and a person may be deceived about the distance.”

CROSS EXAMINED.

«T never was engaged in running an engine. I don’t know anything about the business. The horses
were runuing on the east side of the track. The wood was piled on the east side of the road-——can’t say how
long the rank of wood was—can't give any definite idea, but think probably twenty yards or so. In some
places it was as high as a man’s head, and in other places not so high.

«The wood was piled along on the Company’s ground—a part of the road along there is eut lower than
the surface of the ground. The ground is a little descending from the road in an easterly direction.

When I first saw the horses, I suppose they were a hundred yards from the cattle-guard. They were run-
ning as fast as they could run, I suppose. They were not upon the track at that time, but were east of the
road. They appeared to be on the right of way, perhaps on the edge of the right of way, somewhere in the
neighborhood of a hundred feet of the track. The fences extend out nearly square from the cattle-guard—
not a hundred feet on each side of the track—lacks about a rod on each side of extending a hundred feet from
the track. 4

The fences turned a square corner, and then run south. The horses, when I saw them, were running
south toward the fence—no impediment to prevent the horses from turning east. The horses were running
down south. I was a good piece from them at the time T saw them running. I think they were a hundred
yards from the cattle-guard the last I saw of them before they were killed—I only had a glance at them. It
was my supposition that the arrival of the train started the horses to running, but can’t say certainly. There
was nothing to prevent the horses from turning around the railroad fence, or turning down the street. There
was no crossing put in on the street, but the street was opened on both sides of the road —the street was not
obstructed with wood. It was sometimes used by persons on foot and on horseback, but was not used for

wagoners.”’
RE-EXAMINED BY PLAINTIFE'S COUNSEL.

« T think if the whistle had been sounded, it might have scared the horses off the road, but I can’t tell.
I have seen horses frightened off the road by whistling. T have seen some horses run on the side of the road
and then leave it. It is impossible to tell what a horse will do—a man can’t judge what they will do.”

Spiller was then called as a witness by the plaintiff, and after having been duly sworn, deposed as follows :

7T was not in Carbondale at the time of the aceident. T went to the place where the horses were killed
two or three hours afterwards.

«T was a repair hind on the road, and was sent for to remove the horses. I would say, when I came to
where the brown filly lay, she was some thirty yards below or soath of the cattle-guard, and east of the road,
lying up o a little bank. The mare was padly crippled. The muscles of the fore leg and shoulder were all
completely mashed, so that it was entirely useless. I saw some horses’ tracks some ten or twelve feet from
where she lay. They looked like they had come from railroad track. No other horse was by her at the time.
The wound appeared to have been done by cars. I can’t say where the mare was struck. She might have
been struck above and went up to where she lay. T can’t say whether she was struck at, above or below the
cattle-guard. The brown filly belonged to W. R. Phelps, aud was worth 875 or $80.  The boss of the repair
hands sent me down to remove the horses. The mare was wholly ruined and worthless, sud we knocked her
in the head and hauled her off’ over beyond where Robert H. Marrion lives, about three hundred yards from
the road. She was lying down when we cawe to her —we did not try 1o get her up—we thought it was no use
to try. She made one effort to get up, but failed.

There has been lots laid off on both sides of the railroad below the cattle-guard, before the acei dent occurred.
Lots are laid out fifty or seventy-five yards kelow where the filly lay—think lots are laid out one hundred
yards below the cattle-guard—dont know whether these lots are a part of Carbondale or individual enterprise.”

John Fight was then called as a witness by the plaintiff, and after being sworn, deposed as follows :

«T was in Carbondale on the day the horses were killed. I was on the side of the road at the time, be-
tween the depot and the cattle-guard. I sawsomehorses runningin towards the road and ears running on down.
The cars got between me and the horses, and I supnose hit them. I was about half way between depot and
cattle-guard. There was a dark colored sorrel mare and colt and a grey horse, that I noticed. The horses
were coming from the east side of the road in the direction of the cattle-guard. The horses were about fifty
yards from the cattle-guard when I first saw them. There was nothing that I know of to obstruct the sight of
the horses from the road. The persons on the train and engine were up higher than I was. There was no&thing
that I know of to have prevented the engineer from seeing the horses if he had been looking in that direction.
The last I saw of the horses they were coming on to the road after the train had passed—1I saw the sorrel mare
and colt and brown filly.

“The sorrel mare was lying near the cattle-guard, and the colt in the cattle-gnard, and the brown filly
about twe rods south of it. The brown filly’s shoulder was mashed all to pieces. Nothing else that I saw
could have done the damage except the cars. Don’t know whose property the brown filly was—she is the same
horse beast spoken of by Spiller. The train left the depot not very fast, but abeut as usual for them to leave—
did not hear the bell ring or whistle sounded. It is about two or three hundred yards from the depot to the
cattle-guard.”
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CROSS EXAMINED.

«When I first saw the horses they were in an open space, in the town of Carbondale—don’t think I was
more than half way from the station to the cattle-guard. T have stated all that I saw till I went down to where
the horses lay. I had started dowa on the line before the train came in—I was walking by the side of the tract
on the east when T first started, but crossed over on the west side, and was on the west side of the track when
[ first saw the horses. I don’t think the horses were on the west side of the track. If they had passed over
on the west side of the track I think I would have seen them. I don’t think they ever got on the west side at
all. T don’t know how far east T could have seen, but could see as far as the fence on the s le of the road. I
could see the fence very near the cattle-guard on both sides of theroad. I perhaps could have seen the ho ses
jump the fence if they had jumped it. I did not see the horses jump the fence. They got in the road before
they got to the fence. The horses were running pretty good speed—as fast as they could run. The running
of the train frequently makes a noise or rattling which frequently frightens horses. The engine puffed a good
deal at starting—all the engines that ever I have seen do so. The horses were forty or fifty yards from the
railroad track—when I first saw them they were running in a southern direction, nearly the same direction the
cars were going. The horses were a little nearer the cattle-guard when I first saw them than the cars were.
'I'he horses started about the time the train started, and began to make good speed just as they passed me. 1t
was but a little bit after they passed me that they got on the road. When the horses made the turn to come
on to the road they went out of my sight, I suppose, when they made the turn they were attempting to cross.
They turned their heads south when they started to ran—they were going south the last I saw of them. I was
standing at the time ten feet or farther from the track-—when the horses gov on the road the train was within
twenty or thirty steps of the cattle-guard, perhaps, less or more. I reckon it was not more than twenty-five or
thirty steps from the cattie-guard, or about that distance.”

[lias Hindman was then called as a witness for the plaintiff, who, after being sworn, deposed as follows:

“T was in Carbondale on the day the horses were killed—was about the platform or station. 1 don’t
think they whistled or rung the bell when they started. They started as usual, and kept getting faster and
fister. They were running faster at the cattle-guard than when they started. I don’t know how far it is from
the station to the cattle-guard, but supppose it is two or threg hundred yards.”

Here the plaintiff closed his evideuce. The defendants then called Mr. Hastings as a witness, who, after
being sworn, deposed as follows :

«I am an engineer by trade—have been engaged us an engineer on railroads and running trains four years
last April, and had charge of trains for that time, except three months. I was engineer ou the Illinois Central
Railroad the first of June last. T flatter myself that I understand the business of an engincer, and the man-
agement of trains. I wasrunning the train as engineer when some horses were killed in Carbondale last June.
It was a passenger train. The train was due at Carbondale ten minutes past three o’clock, in the afternoon.
We arrived about ten minutes behind time. I think we left the station about twenty minutes past three o’clock.
In leaving the station I think I sounded the hell.  There was no appearance of road crossing or street between
the station and the cattle-guard at that time.

“After leaving the station I run along up till I got pretty near up to the cattle~guard. I could see the centre ot
the pilot.” L saw a horse’s head on the left hand side of the pilot. I was then in two or three feet of the
cattle-cuard. Just at that moment I felta jar. When the cars strike a horse or two, we can generally feel it
when gn a light engine, and that was a light engine I was then run ning. I was on the right hand side—it was
my duty to be on that side. In going south, as we were then, I was on the west side. The cars oceupy about
eight and a-half feet width—the train w: s made up of the engine, tender, baggage car, and two passenger cars.
The passenger cars were thirty-four feet long, each baggage car thirty-two feet long, and the engine and tender
thirty-six feet in length. There isa dome in the centre of the boiler. If horses were from four to eight rods
from the road on the east side and ahead, I could not have seen them for the dome. I wooded at Carbondale,
on leaving the fireman was throwing in wood.  When he got in ali the wood there necessary to put in the
furnace, and just as he raised or straightened up, he said, horses. I jumped to the left hand side and saw the
horses just as they were struck. The fircman was at his post, necessarily engaged in the discharge of his duty.
I was engaged at my place. There is no power on earth that could have stopped the train before the horses were
striuck after I saw them. The horses were struck the moment I saw them. If the horses had got upon the
track and run twenty-five or thirty yards, I would have seen them. Ithink I saw them the moment they got
upon the track. If the sides of the track is clear, stock are as liable to go upon the track as not; but if not clear,
eight chances to four they will go upon the track when frightened. When stock are coming out of the brush,
and I think I can pass them before they come upon the road, I never stop. When the whistle is sounded when
stock is on the read where there are no bushes at the sides, they are as likely to leave the road as to keep it :
but if there are obstacles or obstructions, such as dumps and bushes, they generally keep the road. I think at
the place where the horses were killed, there were bushes in the inside of the fence.

(ROSS EXAMINATION.

It was impossible to stop after I saw the horses. I might have stopped before running forty yards. I
swore yesterday that I thought I could stop a train in five and a-halfrods. I still think I could step a train in
twentv-seven and a-half feet by reversing the engine and putting on the brakes, and in twenty-eight and a-
half feet by putting on the brakes simply. I think I could have stopped the train before I got to .the cattle-
ouard if Thad seen the horses on the road forty yards north of the cattle-guard. There was an old man on the
anine at the time, but he was not in the service of the Company. I was the engineer in charge of the train
at that time. A train can not always be stopped in running the distance I have mentioned. That depends
apon the read, and whether the brakemen are at their posts. I suppose it is the duty of the brakemen to be
always at their posts.
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1st. The court erred in admitting improper evidence against defendant below.
2d. The court erred in excluding proper evidence offered by defendant below.
3d. The court erred in refusing a new trial.
4th. The court erred in rendering judgment for plaintiff below.
5th. The court erred in rendering judgment against defendant below.
6th. The court gave improper instructions for plaintiff below.
T7th. The court refused proper instructions for defendant below.
HAYNIE, for Plaintiff in error.
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RE-EXAMINED BY DEFENDANT'S COUNSEL.

Brakemen have to keep up fires and attend to the lights. They have more duties to perform than simply to
wind up the brakes betweecn stations. Itis their duty to keep up fires, look after the lights, and a great many
other things to attend to.

CROSS EXAMINED.

It is not unusual to have fire in the cars in June, nor to lichtup at three o'clock in the evening. I don't
recollect how many taps I gave the bell on starting, but I rang just before we started.

Then the defendants closed their evidence.

The foregoing is all the testimony offered in the cause, and all the evidence in the case.

The court then instructed the jury at the instance of the plaintiff, as follows :

If the proof shows that plaintiff's horse was killed in consequence of gross negligence on the part of the
defendants or §ther servants, the verdict should be guilty.—Gwin.

2. Gross negligence, as known to the law, means less care or caution than a man of ordinary care or pru-
dence would exercise for the protection of his own property.

3. 1If the jury believe from the evidence that the defendants in this case or their servants acted in such a
manner at the time of the killing of plaintiff's horse (if it was killed by them) as to show a wanton or reckles~
disregard of the safety of property, the verdict should be guilty.

The court instructs the jury that the fact of killing the horse may be proven as well by circumstantial
evidence.

The Court also gave the following instructions to the jury, at the instance of the defendants

The court instructs the jury, that the burden of proof is on the plaintiff, and it develves upon him to show
by facts and circumstances, and by those acquainted with the management of trains, who can speak under-
standingly on the subject, that it was practicable and easy to have avoided the collision, and that in not doing
s0, those in charge of the train Were guilty of wanton, wilful or gross negligence, or carelessness, before he is
entitled in law to recover in this case.

The court is asked to instruct the jury that in this case grossmuegligence will not be presumed from the
killing of the horses only by the railroad train ot defendants, it must be shown by the plaintiff that there has
been wanton or wilful, or gross negligence on the part of the defendants in killing the horses in question, he-
fore the plaintiff is entitled to recover.

2d. That the question as to whether the said railroad was fenced or not, is not in issue in this case.

3d. Railroad Companies have an absolute ownership in fee of the lands on which their roads are built,
for their purposes, and if horses graze upon their lands it must be as favor, not as right; and cattle or
horses will not be protected in trespassing upon them, except as against wilful and malicious injuries or gross
negligence.

That if the jury should believe from the evidence that the engineer did not ring his bell at starting from
(arbondale station, nor while crossing a street, this fact would not entitle the plaintiff to recover unless the
horses were killedin consequence of such neglect—and that fact must appear from the testimony.

The jury retired from the bar and soon returned a verdict—finding the defendant guilty, and assessing
damages at $—

The defendants, by their counsel, moved the court for a new trial, and assigned the following grounds:

1st. The verdict is against the evidence.

2. The verdict is against the law.

3. The verdict is against the law and evidence.

But the court overrnled the motion for a new trial and rendered judgment for the plaintiff on the verdict
of the jury; to which opinion of the court in overruling the defendants’ motion for a new trial, the defendants,
by their counsel, then and there excepted, and pray that this their bill of exceptions may be signed aud
sealed, and made a part of the record, which is done accordingly by

WILLIAM K. PARRISH, Judge Jackson Court.

William R. Phelps, Jackson Cireunit Court—Special December Term, 1859,
vs. Appeal.
Illinois Central Railroad Company. } Cost Bill.
COST BY PLAINTIFF.
Clerk’s Fee.—Filing papers of appeal, 50, - - - - % 50
- e Docketing suit, 10; issuing summons, 35, . - 45
= & Filing same, b; entering Sheriff’s return, 10, - - 15
e % Filing two precipes, 10, - - - - 10
% L Issuing three subpenas $1.05; filing same, 15, - - - 1 26
“ o Entering appearance of plaintiff’s attorney, 10, - - 10
4 . Calling cause for trial, 20, - - - - - 20
e “ Calling and serving jury, 15: entering same, 10, - - 25
b H Swearing five witnesses, 25, - - - - 25
& “ Swearing toand filing six affidavits of witnesses, 60, - - 60
e “ Entering verdict of jury, 20, - - - - 20
: = Judgment. 25; docketing same, 10; satasft, 15 - - 50
Recording plaintiff’s cost bill, 30, - - - - 30——$4 R0
Deputy Davis, Jury fees, - - - - - 3 M
¥ B Serving summeons, 50; mileage, 40; returning, 10 - - L 00
- - “  Subpoena on six witnesses, 1.50, - - - 1 60
e 4 Mileage on same, 3 40; returning, 30. - - - 3 70— 4 20
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Peas i the Jackson Gonty Givenit Gourt
O F T ELXE
DECEMBER SPECIAL TERM, A. D. 1857.

AR — §— e - p—§ S

Present—Honorable WILLIAM K. PARRISH, Judge of the 3d Judicial Circuit in the State of Illineis,

and sole presiding Judge of the Jackson County Circuit Court, Ep. H. ReEs, Clerk, and WirrLiam Cox,
Sheriff.

Be it remembered that heretofore, to wit: On the 8th day of December in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and fifty-seven, there was filed in the Clerk’s Office of the Jackson Circuit Court, an
appeal from the judgment of D. N. Hamilton, Police Magistrate, &c., in a certain cause wherein William R.
Phelps was plaintiff, and the Illinois Central Rall Road Company, was defendant, which judgment was ren-
dered on the 30th day of October, A. D., 1857, in favor of the said plaintiff, and against the said defendant for
the sum of sixty-five dollars debt ($65) and seven dollars and twenty-two cents costs, making together the
sum of seventy-two dollars and twenty-two cents (§72.22); all of which appears from the papers of said appeal,

COPY OF TRANSCRIPT.

William R. Phelps,
\C]
Illinois Central Railroad Company. On this 2Ist October, 1859, precipe filed by 1.
Kean, attorney for plalntlff and summons issyed
Judgment, - - - - - $65.00 to E. Hmdman returnable 30th October, 1857, at
Justice’s Cost, - - - - - 1.75 10 o’clock, A. M. Summon served by copy, on
Constable’s « - - - - - 1.72 W.S. Mason, Btation Agent, on the 21st of Octo-
WITNESSES. ber, 1857. Now, on this 30th October, 1857, came
Wm. B. Spiller, - - - > - 50 the plaintiff and proved his charge, but the de-
Josiah Goodwin, - - - - ~ 50 fendant came not. Judgment is therefore given
John Goodwin, - - - - - 50 against the said defendant for the sum of sixty-
W 1lllam Dixon, - - - - - 50 five dollars, the amount of damage proved by the
R. Morrlson - 50 plaintiff, and cost of suit.
Hond 50, Transcrlpt 25, Aﬂidavnt "5 Certlﬁ-
cate 25, - - 1.25
Given under my hand and seal this 30th October, 1857,
i )
D. N. HAMILTON, P. M. {SEAL }
——

Bond filed and approved, 18th November, 1857.
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vs.
Mlinois Central Railroad Company. Appeal.

And now this day came again the parties hererein by their said attornies ; whereupon the said defendants,
by their counsel, proceeded to argue the motion, which they had heretofore entered for a new trial, which
motion is now by the court ovorruled, and it is ordered by the court, that the said vlaintiff have judgment, and
do recover of the said defendant the said sum of seventy-five dollars ($75.00), together with his cost and
charges herein to be taxed, &e.

And afterwards, to wit: On the day and year last aforesaid, the said defendant, by their said attorney, C.
;. Simons, comes and prays an appeal to the Supreme Court of the State of Illinois, which motion is allowed
upon condition that they enter into bond, in the sum of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) with Cyrus
G. Simons security, within thirty days of the date hereof,

William R. Phelps, } Wednesday, December 31st, 1857.

Note.—Bill of exceptions may be signed in vacation.

And afterwards, to wit: On the Ist day ot January, A. D., 1858, the said defendant by thewr said attor-
ney, Cyrus G. Simons, filed in the Clerk’s office of said Jackson County Cireuit Court, their appeal bond in
manner and form as required by an order of court heretofore made in relation thereto.

Which bond is in the words and figures following, to wit:

Knowall men by these presents, that we, the Illinois Central Railroad Company and Cyrus G. Simons are
held and firmly bound unto William R. Phelps, of Jackson county and State of Illinois, in the penal sum of
two hundred and fifty dollars lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which well and truly to
be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators jointly, severally and firmly by these
presents, sealed with our seals, and dated this thirty-first day of December, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and fifty-seven.

The condition of the above foregoing obligation is such, that, whereas, the above named William R.
Phelps did, on the 3d day of December, in the year of our Lord aforesaid, in the Jackson county circuit court,
at the December special term of said court, which was commenced and holden on the 22d day of said month,
and on the eighth day of said term recover a judgmeunt against the above bounden Illinois Central Railroad
Company, for the sum of seventy-five dollars damage, besides cost of suit; from which judgment, the said Illinois
Central Railroad Company wishes to take an appeal to the Supreme Court of the State of Illinois, for the pur-
pose of reversing said judgment and proceeding of said circuit court. Now, if the said Illinois Centrsl Rail-
road Company shall well and truly prosecute their said appeal with effect, or in any case of failure therein shall
well @nd truly pay and satisfy whatever judgment shall be rendered by the court, together with all interests,
costs and damages which may be rendered, ordered or awarded by said court ; then this obligaticn to be void;
otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

TLLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD COMPANY, {SEAL !
by C. G. SIMONS, their Attorney in fact. il
f
CYRUS G. SIMONS, { smar }
!

COPY OF INDORSEMENT.

Wm. R. Phelps vs. Illinois Central Railroad Company.
APPEAL BOND.

Filed January 1st, 1858. ED. H. REES, Clerk.

And afterwards, to wit: On the 9th day of January, A. D., 1859, there was filed in the Clerk’s office of the
said Circuit Court, a bill of exceptions to the aforesaid judgment, which bill of exceptions, are in the words and
figures, to wit :

William R. Phelps, ‘t
vs. Appeal.
Illinois Central Railroad Company. )
In the Jackson Circuit Court, December Special Term, A. D., 1857.

Be it remembered that on the calling of the above entitled cause for trial, a jury was empaneled, and the
plaintiff introduced the following evidence, viz:

Robert H. Morrison was called as a witness for the plaintiff, who, after being duly sworn, stated as follows:

“T was in the town of Carbondale on the day some horses were killed. I happened to come down on the
train that day, and at the time of the accident was proceeding from the station to my residence, which is about
three hundred yards south of the station. I was walking on down the street, when I saw some horses running
down the line. I only had a momentary sight of them. They were running down in the direction of the
cattle-guard, which is south of the station. I only saw them a few seconds, when they got behind a house from
me, which excluded them from my sight. At the time I saw them, they were about one hundred yards from
the cattle-guard. The train of cars were in motion at the time. My impression is, that the horses were a little
in advance of the train, but not on the read. T can’t say whether the horses were in view of persons on the
train or not.

There was wood piled up for some distance on the east side of the road. The pile of wood extended
down to the street one hundred forty feet, perhaps into cattle-guard. There was no obstruction to the view
from there to the cattle~guard. I did not see the horses get on the road. I think persons on the train could
have seen the horses if they had been looking out in the direction they were. The train was not running very
fast—ordinary speed in leaving a station; did not notice that the speed was slackened. There is a street run-
ning across the road about seventy~five feet north of the cattle-guard. The street is laid off in the town limits
—did not ring the bell or whistle from the time they left the station house till they got to the eattle-guard.
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“T had just got off the train. I saw three dead horses. One was lying a little to the left}of the track as
you go south. I don't recollect of seeing a brown filly killed. It was the same train that Josiah Goodwin’s
horses were killed. I speak of that time. I can’t say how far it is from the station house to the cattle-guard,
but think perhaps it is one hundred yards. It is very level, and » person may be deceived about the distance.”

CROSS EXAMINED.

«T pever was engaged in running an engine. I don’t know anything about the business. The horses
were running on the east side of the track. The wood was piled on the east side of the road—can’t say how
long the rank of wood was—can’t give any definite idea, but think probably twenty yards or so. In some
places it was as high as a man’s head, and in other places not so high.

“The wood was piled along on the Company’s ground—a part of the road along there is cut lower than
the surface of the ground. The ground is a little descending from the road in an easterly direction.

When I first saw the horses, I suppose they were a hundred yards from the cattle-guard. They were run-
ning as fast as they could run, I suppose. They were not upon the track at that time, but were east of the
road. They appeared to be on the right of way, perhaps on the edge of the right of way, somewhere in the
neighborhood of a hundred feet of the track. The fences extend out nearly square from the cattle-guard—

nota hundred feet on each side of the track—lacks about & rod on each side of extending a hundred feet from
the track.

The fences turned a square corner, and then run south. The horses, when I saw them, were running
south toward the fence—no impediment to prevent the horses from turning east. The horses were running
down south. I was a good piece from them at the time I saw them running. I think they were a hundred
yards from the cattle-guard the last I saw of them before they were killed—1 only had a glance at them. It
was my supposition that the arrival of the train started the horses to running, but can’t say certainly. There
was nothing to prevent the horses from turning around the railroad fence, or turning down the street. There
was no crossing put in on the street, but the street was opened on both sides of the road —the street was not
obstructed with wood. It was sometimes used by persons on foot and on horseback, but was not used for"
wagoners.”’

RE-EXAMINED BY PLAINTIFI's COUNSEL.

« T think if the whistle had been sounded, it might have scared the horses off the road, but I can’t tell.
I have seen horses frightened off the road by whistling. I have seen some horses run ou the side of the road
and then leave it. It is impossible to tell what a horse will do-—a man can’t judge what they will do.”

Wpiller was then calied as a witness by the plaintiff, and after having been duly sworn, deposed as follows =

« T was not in Carbondale at the time of the accident. I went to the place where the horses were killed
two or three hours afterwards.

¢ [ was a repair hind on the road, and was sent for to remove the horses. 1 would say, when I came to
where the brown filly lay, she was some thirty yards below or south of the cattle-guard, and east of the road,
lying up on a little bank. The mare was badly crippled.  The muscles of the fore leg and shoulder were all
completely mashed, so that it was entirely useless. I saw some horses’ tracks some ten or twelve feet from
where she lay. They looked like they had come from railroad track. No other horse was by her at the time.
The wound appeared to have been done by cars. I ean’t say where the mare was struck. She might have
been struck above and went up to where she lay. I can’t say whether she was struck at, above or below the
cattle-guard. The brown filly helonged to W. R. Phelps, and was worth $75 or $80. The boss of the repair
hands sent me down to remove the horses. The mare was wholiy ruined and worthless, snd we knocked her
in the head and hauled her off over beyond where Robert H. Marrion lives, about three hundred yards from
the road. She was lying down when we came to her —we did not try fo get her up—we thought it was no use
to try. Shemade one effort to get up, but failed.

There has been lots laid off on both sides of the railroad below the cattle-guard, before the acei dent occurred.
Lots are laid out fifty or seventy-five yards kelow where the filly lay—think lots are laid out one hundred
yards below the cattle-guard—dont know whether these lots are a part of Carbondale or individual enterprise.”

John Fight was then called as a Witness by the plaintiff, and after being sworn, deposed as follows :

«T was in Carbondale on the day the horses were killed. T was on the side of the road at the time, be-
tween the depot and the cattle-guard. I sawsomehorses runningin towards the road and cars running on down.
The cars got between me and the horses, and T supnose hit them. I was about half way between depot and
cattle-guard. There was a dark colored sorrel mare and colt and a grey horse, that I noticed. The horses
were coming from the east side of the road in the direction of the cattle-guard. The horses were about fifty
yards from the cattle-guard when I first saw them. There was nothing that T know of to obstruct the sight of
the horses from the road. The persons on the train and engine were up higher than I was. There was nothing
that I know of to have prevented the engineer from seeing the horses if he had been looking in that direction.
The last I saw of the horses they were coming on to the road after the train had passed—I saw the sorrel mare
and colt and brown dlly.

“The sorrel mare was lying near the cattle-guard, and the colt in the cattle-guard, and the brown filly
about twe rods south of it. The brown filly’s shoulder was masbed all to pieces. Nothing else that I saw
could have done the damage except the cars. Don’t know whose property the brown filly was—she is the same
horse beast spoken of by Spiller. The train left the depot not very fast, but about as usual for them to leave—
did not hear the bell ring or whistle sounded. It is about two or three hundred yards from the depot to the
cattle-guard.”
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CROSS EXAMINED.

«When I first saw the horses they were in an open space, in the town of Carbondale—don’t think T wag
more than half way from the station to the cattle-guard. T have stated all that I saw till I went down to where
the horses lay. I had started down on the line before the train came in—T was walking by the side of the tract
on the east when T first started, but crossed over on the west side, and was on the west side of the track when
[ first saw the horses. I don’t think the horses were on the west side of the track. If they had passed over
on the west side of the track T think T would have seen them. I don’t think they ever got on the west side at
all. T don't know how far east I could have seen, but could see as far as the fence on the side of the road. I
could see the fence very near the cattle-guard on both sides of theroad. I perhaps could have seen the ho ses
jump the fence if they had jumped it. T did not see the horses jump the fence. They got in the road before
they got to the fence. The horses were running pretty good speed—as fast as they could run. The running
of the train frequently makes a noise or rattling which frequently frightens horses. The engine puffed a good

deal at starting—all the engines that ever I have seen do so. The horses were forty or fifty yards from the
railroad track—when I first saw them they were running in a sonthern direction, nearly the same direction the
cars were going. The horses werea little nearer the cattle-guard when T first saw them than the cars were.
I'he horses started about the time the train started, and began to make good speed just as they passed me. Tt
was but a little bit after they passed me that they got on the road. When the horses made the turn to come
on to the road they went out of my sight, I suppose, when they made the turn they were attempting to cross.
They turned their heads south when they started to run—they were going south the last I saw of them. I was
standing at the time ten feet or farther from the track— when the horses got on the road the train was within
twenty or thirty steps of the cattle-guard, perhaps, less or more. I reckon it was not more than twenty-five or
thirty steps from the cattie-guard, or about that distance.”

Tlias Hindwan was then called as a witness tor the plaintiff, who, after being sworn, deposed as follows:

« ¥ was in Carbondale on the day the horses were killed—was about the platform or station. T don’t
think they whistled or rung the bell when they started. They started as usual, and kept getting faster and
fister. They were running faster at the cattle-guard than when they started. I don’t know how far it is from
the station to the cattle-guard, but supppose it is two or three hundred yards.”

Here the plaintiff closed his evidence. The defendants then called Mr. Hastings as a witness, who, after
being sworn, deposed as follows :

«T am an engineer by trade—have been engaged as an engineer on raiiroads and running trains four years
last April, and had charge of trains for that time. except three months. I was engineer on the Illinois Central
Railroad the first of June last. T flatter myself that k understand the business of an eagineer, and the man-
agement of trains. T was running the train as engineer when some horses were killed in Carbondale last June.
It was a passenger train. The train was due at Carbondale ten minutes past three o’clock, in the afternoon.
We arrived about ten minutes behind time. I think we left the station about twenty minutes past three o’clock.
In leaving the station I think I sounded the bell. There was no appearance of road crossing or street between
the station and the cattle-guard at that time.

“A frer leaving the station I run along up till I got pretty near up to the cattle~-guard. I could see the centre ot
the pilot. I saw a horse’s head on the left hand side of the pilot. I was then in two or three feet of the
cattle-guard. Justat that moment I feltajar. When the cars strike a horse or two, we can generally feel it
when on a light engine, and that was a light engine I was then running. I was on the right hand side—it was
my duty to be on that side. In goingsouth, as we were then, I was on the west side. The cars occupy about
eight and a-half feet width—the train w s made up of the engine, tender, baggage car, and two passenger cars.
The passenger cars were thirty-four feet long, each bageage car thirty-two feet long, and the engine and tender
thirty-six feet in length. There isa dome in the centre of the boiler. If horses were from four to eight rods
from the road on the east side and ahead, I could not have seen them for the dowe. I wooded at Carbondale,
on leaving the fireman was throwing in wood. When he got in ali the wood there necessary to put in the
furnace and just as he raised or straightened up, he said, horses. I jumped to the left hand side and saw the
horses Just as they were struck. The fircman was ut his post, necessarily engaged 1n the discharge of his duty.
T was engaged at my place. There is no power on earth that could have stopped the train before the horses were
struck after I saw them. The horses were struck the moment [ saw them. If the horses had got upon the
track and run twenty-five or thirty yards, I would have seen them. I think I saw them the moment they got
upon the track. Tf the sides of the track is clear, stock are as liable to go upon the track as not; but if not clear,
eight chances to four they will go upon the track when frightened. When stock are coming out of the brush,
and T think I can pass them before they come upon the road, [ never stop. When the whistle is sounded when
stock is on the read where there arc no bushes at the sides, they are as likely to leave the road as to keep it:
but if there are obstacles or obstructions, such as dumps and bushes, they generally keep the road. I thinkat
the place where the horses were killed, there were bushes in the inside of the fence.

CROSS EXAMINATION.

1t was impossible to stop after T saw the horses. T might have stopped before running forty yards. I
swore yesterday that T thought I could stop a train in five and a-halfrods. I still think I could stop a train in
twenty-seven and a-half feet by reversing the engine and putting on the brakes, and in twenty-eight and a-
half feet by putting on the brakes simply. I think I could have stopped the train before I got to the cattle-
guard if Thad seen the horses on the road forty yards north of the cattle-guard. There was an old man on the
engine at the time, but he was not in the service of the Company. I was the engineer in charge of the train
at that time. A train can not always be stopped in running the distance I have mentioned. That depends
upon the road, and whether the brakemen are at their posts. I suppose it is the duty of the brakemen to be

‘always at their posts.
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The court erred in admitting improper evidence against defendant below.

The court erred in excluding proper evidence offered by defendant below.

The court erred in refusing a new trial.

The court erred in rendering judgment for plaintiff below.

The court erred in rendering judgment against defendant below.

The court gave improper instructions for plaintiff below.

The court refused proper instructions for defendant below.

HAYNIR, for Plaintiff in exror.



RE-EXAMINED BY DEFENDANT'S COUNSEL.

Brakemen have to keep up fires and attend to the lights. They have more duties to perform than simply to
wind up the brakes between stations. Itis their duty to keep up fires, look after the lights, and a great many
other things to attend to.

CROSS EXAMINED.

Itis not unusual to have fire in the cars in June, nor to light up at three o’clock in the evening. I don't
recollect how many taps I gave the bell on starting, but I rang just before we started.

Then the defendants closed their evidence.

The foregoing is all the testimony offered in the cause, and all the evidence in the case.

The court then instructed the jury at the instance of the plaintiff, as follows :

If the proof shows that plaintiff’s horse was killed in consequence of gross negligence on the part of the

# 2. 17 defendants or other servants, the verdict should be guilty. —Gwin,

2. Gross negligence, as known to the law, means less care or caution than a man of ordinary eare or pru-
dence would exercise for the protection of his own property.

3. If the jury believe from the evidence that the defendants in this case or their servants acted in such a
manner at the time of the killing of plaintiff’s horse (if it was killed by them) as to show a wanton or reckless
disregard of the safety of proper - the verdict should be guilty.

The court instructs the jury that the fact of killing the horse may be proven as well by circumstantial
evidence. ' '

The Court also gave the following instructions to the jury, at the instance of the defendants :

The court instructs the jury, that the burden of proof is on the plaintiff, and it devolves upon him to show
by facts and circumstances, and by those acquainted with the management of trains, who can speak under-
standingly on the subject, that it Was practicable and easy to have avoided the collision, and that in not doing
%0, those in charge of the train Were guilty of wanton, wilful or gross negligence, or carelessness, before he is
entitled in law to recover in this case.

iy - The court is asked to instruct the jury that in this case wrows negligence will not be presumed from the
killing of the horses only by the railroad train of defendants, it must be shown by the plaintiff that there hae
been wanton or wilful, or gross negligence on the part of the defendants in killing the horses in question, be-
tore the plaintiff is entitled to recover.

2d. That the question as to whether the said railroad was fenced or not, is not in issue in this case.

3d. Railroad Companies have an absolute ownership in fee of the lands on which their roads are buils.
for their purposes, and if horses graze upon their lands it must be as favor, not as right; and cattle wr
horses will not be protected in trespassing upon them, except as against wilful and malicious injuries or gross
negligence. W—

That if the jury should believe from the evidence that the engineer did not ring his bell at starting from
Carbondale station, nor while crossing a street, this fact would not entitle the plaintiff to recover unless the
horses were killedin consequence of such neglest—and that fact must appear from the testimony.

The jury retired from the bar and soon returned a verdict—finding the defendant guilty, and assessing
damages at $

. 2L The defendants, by their counsel, moved the court for a new trial, and assigned the following grounds
: Ist. The verdict is against the evidence.

2. The verdict is against the law.

3. The verdict is against the law and evidence.

But the court overrnled the motion for a new trial and rendered judgment for the plaintiff on the verdict
of the jury; to which opinion of the court in overruling the defendants’ motion for a new trial, the defendants,
by their counsel, then and there excepted, and pray that this their bill of exceptions may be signed and
sealed, and made a part of the record, which is done accordingly by

- WILLIAM K. PARRISH, Judge Jackson Counrt.

PO —_— William R. Phelps, Jackson Circuit Lourt—Special December Term, 1854
e VS, Appeal. ’
7 Illinois Central Railroad Company. Cost Bill.

COST BY PLAINTIFE.

Ulerk’s Fee.—Filing papers of appeal, 50, - - - - % 50
“ R Docketing suit, 10; issuing summons, 35, - - 45 =

= £ Filing same, 5; entering Sheriff’s return, 10, < - - 15
6 v Filing two precipes, 10, - - - - 10
o 5 Issuing three subpenas $1.05; filing same, 15 - - - 120
¢ & Entering appearance of plaintiff’s attorney, 10, - - 10
E % Calling cause for trial, 20, - - - - - 20
o i Calling and serving jury, 15: entering same, 10, - - 25
& “ Swearing five witnesses, 25, - - - ~ 25
% e Swearing toand filing six affidavits of witnesses, 60, - - 60
. & Entering verdict of jury, 20, - - - - 20
& Judgment. 25; docketing same, 10; satasft, 15 - - 50

. Recording plaintiff’s cost bill, 30, - - - - 30——84 Ro

Deputy Davig, Jury fees, 5 - . - 4 300
. i Serving summons, 50; mileage, 40; returning, 10, - - 1 00
b “ “  Subpoena on six witnesses, 1.50, - - - 1 50

R @ Mileage on same, 3 40; returning, 3. - - - 3 05— 890 -
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